

1 **21 NCAC 14A .0104 ADDRESS IS AMENDED AS PUBLISHED IN NC REGISTER 28:23 AS FOLLOWS:**

2

3 **21 NCAC 14A .0104 ADDRESS**

4

5 The address for the board is ~~1201-110~~ 1207-110 Front Street, Raleigh, North Carolina 27609.

6

7 *History Note: Authority G.S. 88-23;*

8 *Eff. February 1, 1976;*

9 *Amended Eff. January 1, 2015; August 1, 1998; December 6, 1991; January 1, 1989; April 1, 1988.*

1 **21 NCAC 14T .0602 COSMETOLOGY CURRICULUM IS AMENDED AS PUBLISHED IN NC**
 2 **REGISTER 28:23 AS FOLLOWS WITH CHANGES:**

3

4 **21 NCAC 14T .0602 COSMETOLOGY CURRICULUM**

5 (a) To meet the approval of the Board, a cosmetologist training course **must shall** consist of 1500 hours of instruction in
 6 theory and practical application, divided as follows:

Theory	Hours	Services	
Beginners: Professional image, sanitation, bacteriology, disinfection, first aid, anatomy, electricity, chemistry, professional ethics, draping, shampooing, roller sets, pin curls, ridge curls with C shaping, fingerwaves, braids, artificial hair, up styles, blowdrying brush control, blowdrying with curling iron, pressing/thermal, hair cutting, partings, perm wraps, relaxer sectioning, color application sectioning, scalp treatments, manicures, pedicures, and artificial nails.	300		
Advanced: Styles and techniques of cosmetology services including arranging, dressing, curling, waving; cutting techniques and implements including razors, clippers, thinning shears, and shears; cleansing, cutting, singeing, bleaching or coloring hair; esthetics and manicuring; and business management and salon business.	1200		
Performance Requirements		Mannequin	Live Model
Scalp and hair treatments			10
Fullhead fingerwave and style		5 or	5
Fullhead pineurl and style		5 or	5
Hair styling—sets, blowdrying, thermal press/flat iron, and artificial hair		70	100
Haireuts		10	75
Chemical reformation or permanent waving and relaxers		25	10
Temporary color			2
Color application—semi, demi, permanent color and hair lightening		10	30
Multidimensional color—low/high lighting, cap, bleach		10	15
Lash and brow color			2
Nail care—manicures and pedicures			15
Artificial nails sets		5 or	5
Facials with surface manipulations			10

1 21 NCAC 14T .0603 APPRENTICE COSMETOLOGY CURRICULUM IS AMENDED AS PUBLISHED IN
 2 NC REGISTER 28:23 AS FOLLOWS WITH CHANGES:

3
 4 21 NCAC 14T .0603 APPRENTICE COSMETOLOGY CURRICULUM

5 (a) To meet the approval of the Board, an apprentice cosmetologist training course **must shall** consist of 1200 hours of
 6 instruction in theory and practical application, divided as follows:

Theory	Hours	Services	
Beginners: Professional image, sanitation, bacteriology, disinfection, first aid, anatomy, electricity, chemistry, professional ethics, draping, shampooing, roller sets, pin curls, ridge curls with C-shaping, fingerwaves, braids, artificial hair, up-styles, blowdrying brush control, blowdrying with curling iron, pressing/thermal, hair cutting, partings, perm wraps, relaxer sectioning, color application sectioning, scalp treatments, manicures, pedicures, and artificial nails.	300		
Advanced: Styles and techniques of cosmetology services including arranging, dressing, curling, waving; cutting techniques and implements including razors, clippers, thinning shears, and shears; cleansing, cutting, singeing, bleaching or coloring hair; esthetics and manicuring; and business management and salon business.	900		
Performance Requirements		Mannequin	Live Model
Scalp and hair treatments			8
Fullhead fingerwave and style		3 or	3
Fullhead pineurl and style		3 or	3
Hair styling—sets, blowdrying, thermal press/flat iron, and artificial hair		56	80
Haircuts		8	60
Chemical reformation or permanent waving and relaxers		19	8
Temporary color			4
Color application—semi, demi, permanent color and hair lightening		8	11
Multidimensional color—low/high lighting, cap, bleach		3	8
Lash and brow color			4
Nail care—manicures and pedicures			12
Artificial nails sets		4 or	4
Facials with surface manipulations			7
Makeup application			4
Hair removal			3

1
2

<u>Theory</u>	<u>Hours</u>	<u>[Services]</u> <u>Performances</u>
Beginners: Professional image, sanitation, bacteriology, disinfection, first aid, anatomy, electricity, chemistry, professional ethics, draping, shampooing, roller sets, pin curls, ridge curls with C shaping, fingerwaves, braids, artificial hair, up-styles, blowdrying brush control, blowdrying with curling iron, pressing/thermal , pressing or thermal , hair cutting, partings, perm wraps, relaxer sectioning, color application sectioning, scalp treatments, manicures, pedicures, and artificial nails.	300	
Advanced: Styles and techniques of cosmetology services including arranging, dressing, curling, waving; cutting techniques and implements including razors, clippers, thinning shears, and shears, cleansing, cutting, singeing, bleaching-bleaching , or coloring hair; esthetics and manicuring; and business management and salon business.	900	
<u>Performance Requirements</u>		<u>[Live Model]</u> <u>Performances</u>
Scalp and hair treatments		8
Fullhead fingerwave and style		6
Fullhead pincurl and style		6
Hair styling - sets, blowdrying, thermal press/flat iron , thermal press or flat iron , and artificial hair		136
Haircuts		68
Chemical reformation or permanent waving and relaxers		27
Temporary color		1
Color application - semi, demi, permanent color color , and hair lightening		19
Multidimensional color - low/high low or high lighting, cap, or bleach		8
Lash and brow color		1
Nail care - manicures and pedicures		12
Artificial nails sets		8

<u>Facials with surface manipulations</u>		<u>7</u>
<u>Makeup application</u>		<u>1</u>
<u>Hair removal</u>		<u>3</u>

- 1 (b) A minimum of 300 hours of theory ~~is~~ shall be required prior to conducting live model performances on the public.
- 2 (c) Certification of live model or mannequin performance completions ~~is~~ shall be required along with on the graduation
- 3 form and application for the Board examination.
- 4 ~~(d) A live model may be substituted for a mannequin for any mannequin service.~~
- 5 ~~(e) All mannequin services may be performed using a simulated product.~~
- 6 ~~(f) Simulated product is not allowed for credit for live model performance.~~
- 7 ~~(g) Mannequin services shall not be substituted for live model services.~~
- 8 ~~(h)~~ (d) Sharing of performance completions ~~is not~~ shall not be allowed.
- 9 ~~(i)~~ (e) Credit for a performance shall be given to only one student.
- 10 ~~(j)~~ (f) A nail set is "nail set" means one hand including all four fingers and thumb.

11

12 *History Note: Authority G.S. 88B-4; 88B-16;*

13 *Eff. January 1, 2012;*

14 *Amended Eff. January 1, 2015; June 1, 2013; September 1, 2012.*

Makeup application			2
Hair removal			5

1
2

<u>Theory</u>	<u>Hours</u>	<u>[Services] Performances</u>
<u>Beginners: Professional image, sanitation, bacteriology, disinfection, first aid, anatomy, electricity, chemistry, professional ethics, draping, shampooing, roller sets, pin curls, ridge curls with C shaping, fingerwaves, braids, artificial hair, up-styles, blowdrying brush control, blowdrying with curling iron, pressing/thermal, pressing or thermal, hair cutting, partings, perm wraps, relaxer sectioning, color application sectioning, scalp treatments, manicures, pedicures, and artificial nails.</u>	300	
<u>Advanced: Styles and techniques of cosmetology services including arranging, dressing, curling, waving; cutting techniques and implements including razors, clippers, thinning shears, and shears, cleansing, cutting, singeing, bleaching-bleaching, or coloring hair; esthetics and manicuring; and business management and salon business.</u>	1200	
		<u>[Live Model] Performances</u>
<u>Performance Requirements</u>		
<u>Scalp and hair treatments</u>		10
<u>Fullhead fingerwave and style</u>		10
<u>Fullhead pincurl and style</u>		10
<u>Hair styling - sets, blowdrying, thermal press/flat iron, thermal press or flat iron, and artificial hair</u>		170
<u>Haircuts</u>		85
<u>Chemical reformation or permanent waving and relaxers</u>		35
<u>Temporary color</u>		2
<u>Color application - semi, demi, permanent color, color, and hair lightening</u>		40
<u>Multidimensional color - low/high low or high lighting, cap, or bleach</u>		25
<u>Lash and brow color</u>		2
<u>Nail care - manicures and pedicures</u>		15
<u>Artificial nails sets</u>		10

<u>Facials with surface manipulations</u>		<u>10</u>
<u>Makeup application</u>		<u>2</u>
<u>Hair removal</u>		<u>5</u>

- 1 (b) A minimum of 300 hours of theory ~~is~~ shall be required prior to conducting live model performances on the public.
- 2 (c) Certification of live model or mannequin performance completions ~~is~~ shall be required along with on the graduation
- 3 form and application for the Board examination.
- 4 ~~(d) A live model may be substituted for a mannequin for any mannequin service.~~
- 5 ~~(e) All mannequin services may be performed using a simulated product.~~
- 6 ~~(f) Simulated product is not allowed for credit for live model performance.~~
- 7 ~~(g) Mannequin services shall not be substituted for live model services.~~
- 8 ~~(h) (d)~~ Sharing of performance completions ~~is not~~ shall not be allowed.
- 9 ~~(i) (e)~~ Credit for a performance shall be given to only one student.
- 10 ~~(j) (f)~~ A nail set ~~is~~ "nail set" means one hand including all four fingers and thumb.

11

12 *History Note: Authority G.S. 88B-4; 88B-16;*

13 *Eff. January 1, 2012;*

14 *Amended Eff. January 1, 2015; June 1, 2013; October 1, 2012.*

15

1 **21 NCAC 14T .0604 ESTHETICS CURRICULUM IS AMENDED AS PUBLISHED IN NC REGISTER**
 2 **28:23 AS FOLLOWS WITH CHANGES:**

3
 4 **21 NCAC 14T .0604 ESTHETICS CURRICULUM**

5 (a) To meet the approval of the Board, an esthetician training course **must shall** consist of at least 600 hours of
 6 instruction in theory and practical application, divided as follows:
 7

Theory and Performance Requirements	Hours	Services	
Beginners: anatomy/physiology, hygiene, disinfection, first aid, chemistry, draping, facial/body treatment (cleansing, manipulations, masks), hair removal, basic dermatology, machines, electricity, apparatus, aromatherapy, nutrition, make up/color theory.	40	-	
Advanced: Styles and techniques of esthetics services including facials, makeup application, performing skin care, hair removal, eyelash extensions and applying brow and lash color; business management; and professional ethics	560	-	
Performance Requirements		Mannequin	Live Model
Facials Manual (skin analysis, cleansing, surface manipulations, packs and masks)		10	30
Facials Electronic (the use of electrical modalitus, including dermal lights, and electrical apparatus for facials and skin care including galvanic and faradic)			30
Eyebrow arching		5	15
Hair removal (hard wax, soft wax, depilatories)		5	25
Makeup application (skin analysis, complete and corrective makeup)		10	20
Eyelash extensions		5	5
Brow and lash color		5	5

8

Theory and Performance Requirements	Hours	[Services]
		Performances
Beginners: <u>anatomy/physiology, anatomy or physiology, hygiene, disinfection, first aid, chemistry, draping, facial/body facial or body treatment (cleansing, manipulations, masks), hair removal, basic dermatology, machines, electricity, apparatus, aromatherapy, nutrition, and make up/color make-up or color</u> theory.	40	

<u>Advanced: Styles and techniques of esthetics services including facials, makeup application, performing skin care, hair removal, eyelash extensions extensions, and applying brow and lash color; business management; and professional ethics</u>	560	
<u>Performance Requirements</u>		<u>[Live Model]</u> <u>Performances</u>
<u>Facials Manual (skin analysis, cleansing, surface manipulations, packs packs, and masks)</u>		<u>40</u>
<u>Facials Electronic (the use of electrical modalitus, including dermal lights, and electrical apparatus for facials and skin care including galvanic and faradic)</u>		<u>30</u>
<u>Eyebrow arching</u>		<u>20</u>
<u>Hair removal (hard wax, soft wax, and depilatories)</u>		<u>30</u>
<u>Makeup application (skin analysis, complete and corrective makeup)</u>		<u>30</u>
<u>Eyelash extensions</u>		<u>10</u>
<u>Brow and lash color</u>		<u>10</u>

- 1
- 2 (b) A minimum of 40 hours of theory is shall be required prior to conducting live model performances on the
- 3 public.
- 4 (c) Certification of live model or mannequin performance completions is shall be required along with on the
- 5 graduation form and Board's application for the examination.
- 6 ~~(d) A live model may be substituted for a mannequin for any mannequin service.~~
- 7 ~~(e) All mannequin services may be performed using a simulated product.~~
- 8 ~~(f) Simulated product is not allowed for credit for live model performance.~~
- 9 ~~(g) Mannequin services shall not be substituted for live model services.~~
- 10 ~~(h) (d) Sharing of performance completions is not shall not be~~ allowed.
- 11 ~~(i) (e) Credit for a performance shall be given to only one student.~~

12

13 *History Note: Authority G.S. 88B-2; 88B-4; 88B-16; 88B-17;*

14 *Eff. January 1, 2012;*

15 *Amended Eff. January 1, 2015; August 1, 2014.*

1 **21 NCAC 14T .0605 MANICURING CURRICULUM IS AMENDED AS PUBLISHED IN NC**
 2 **REGISTER 28:23 AS FOLLOWS WITH CHANGES:**

3
 4 **21 NCAC 14T .0605 MANICURING CURRICULUM**

5 (a) To meet the approval of the Board, a manicurist training course **must shall** consist of at least 300 hours of
 6 instruction in theory and practical application, divided as follows:

<u>Theory and Performance Requirements</u>	<u>Hours</u>	<u>Services</u>	
<u>Beginners: Manicuring theory, disinfection, first aid, trimming, filing, shaping, decorating, arm and hand manipulation, sculptured and artificial nails; and pedicuring</u>	<u>25</u>		
<u>Advance: Styles and techniques for the care, treatment and decoration of fingernails, toenails, cuticles, nail extensions and artificial nails; electric file; business management; and professional ethics</u>	<u>275</u>		
<u>Performance Requirements</u>		<u>Mannequin</u>	<u>Live Model</u>
<u>Manicures including trimming, filing, shaping, decorating and arm and hand manipulations</u>		<u>5</u>	<u>10</u>
<u>Applications or repair of sculptured or artificial nail sets</u>		<u>5</u>	<u>15</u>
<u>Pedicures</u>			<u>10</u>

7

<u>Theory and Performance Requirements</u>	<u>Hours</u>	<u>[Services]</u> <u>Performances</u>
<u>Beginners: Manicuring theory, disinfection, first aid, trimming, filing, shaping, decorating, arm and hand manipulation, sculptured and artificial nails; and pedicuring</u>	<u>25</u>	
<u>Advance: Styles and techniques for the care, treatment treatment, and decoration of fingernails, toenails, cuticles, nail extensions and artificial nails; electric file; business management; and professional ethics</u>	<u>275</u>	
<u>Performance Requirements</u>		<u>[Live Model]</u> <u>Performances</u>
<u>Manicures including trimming, filing, shaping, decorating decorating, and arm and hand manipulations</u>		<u>15</u>
<u>Applications or repair of sculptured or artificial nail sets</u>		<u>20</u>
<u>Pedicures</u>		<u>10</u>

8

9 (b) A minimum of 25 hours theory **is shall be** required prior to conducting live model performances on the public.

1 (c) Certification of ~~live model or mannequin~~ performance completions ~~is shall be~~ required ~~along with on~~ the
2 graduation form and Board's application for the examination.

3 ~~(d) A live model may be substituted for a mannequin for any mannequin service.~~

4 ~~(e) All mannequin services may be performed using a simulated product.~~

5 ~~(f) Simulated product is not allowed for credit for live model performance.~~

6 ~~(g) Mannequin services shall not be substituted for live model services.~~

7 ~~(h) (d)~~ Sharing of performance completions ~~is not shall not be~~ allowed.

8 ~~(i) (e)~~ Credit for a performance shall be given to only one student.

9 ~~(j) (f)~~ A ~~nail set is~~ "nail set" means one hand including all four fingers and thumb.

10

11 *History Note: Authority G.S. 88B-2; 88B-4; 88B-16; 88B-17;*

12 *Eff. January 1, 2012;*

13 *Amended Eff. January 1, 2015; August 1, 2014.*

14

1 **21 NCAC 14T .0606 NATURAL HAIR CARE CURRICULUM IS AMENDED A PUBLISHED IN NC**
 2 **REGISTER 28:23 AS FOLLOWS WITH CHANGES:**

3

4 **21 NCAC 14T .0606 NATURAL HAIR CARE CURRICULUM**

5 (a) To meet the approval of the Board, a natural hair care styling training course **must shall** consist of 300 hours of
 6 instruction in theory and practical application, divided as follows:

Theory	Hours	Services	
Beginners: Sanitation, bacteriology, disinfection, first aid, shampooing, draping, anatomy, disorders of the hair and scalp, client consultation.	25		
Advanced: Styles and techniques of natural hair styling including twisting, wrapping, extending, locking, blowdry and thermal iron; and business management and professional ethics.	275		
Performance Requirements		Mannequin	Live Model
Braids		5	5
Twists		5	5
Knots		3	2
Corn rows		3	2
Hairlocking		5	5
Artificial hair and decorations		5	5
Blow dry and thermal iron		5	5
Braid Removal		5	5

7

Theory	Hours	[Services] Performances
Beginners: Sanitation, bacteriology, disinfection, first aid, shampooing, draping, anatomy, disorders of the hair and scalp scalp, and client consultation.	25	
Advanced: Styles and techniques of natural hair styling including twisting, wrapping, extending, locking, blowdry and thermal iron; and business management management; and professional ethics.	275	
Performance Requirements		[Live Model] Performances
Braids		10
Twists		10
Knots		5

<u>Corn rows</u>		<u>5</u>
<u>Hairlocking</u>		<u>10</u>
<u>Artificial hair and decorations</u>		<u>10</u>
<u>Blow dry and thermal iron</u>		<u>10</u>
<u>Braid Removal</u>		<u>10</u>

- 1
- 2 (b) A minimum of 25 hours of theory ~~is~~ **shall be** required prior to conducting live model performances on the public.
- 3 (c) Certification of ~~live model or mannequin~~ performance completions ~~is~~ **shall be** required ~~along with on~~ the graduation
- 4 form and **Board's** application for the Board examination.
- 5 ~~(d) A live model may be substituted for a mannequin for any mannequin service.~~
- 6 ~~(e) All mannequin services may be performed using a simulated product.~~
- 7 ~~(f) Simulated product is not allowed for credit for live model performance.~~
- 8 ~~(g) Mannequin services shall not be substituted for live model services.~~
- 9 ~~(h) (d)~~ Sharing of performance completions ~~is not shall not be~~ allowed unless the live model service consists of 20 or
- 10 more lengths of hair.
- 11 ~~(i) (e)~~ Credit for a performance shall be given to only one student.
- 12 ~~(j) (f)~~ A performance shall consist of 10 or more lengths of hair.

13

14 *History Note: Authority G.S. 88B-2; 88B-4; 88B-16;*

15 *Eff. January 1, 2012;*

16 *Amended Eff. January 1, 2015; August 1, 2014; June 1, 2013.*

17

1 **21 NCAC 14T .0705 SCHOOL PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS IS AMENDED AS PUBLISHED**
2 **IN NC REGISTER 28:23 AS FOLLOWS:**

3 **21 NCAC 14T .0705 SCHOOL PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS**

4 (a) Each cosmetic art school shall meet or exceed a program completion rate of at least 50 percent during any five
5 year period and shall meet or exceed a student pass rate on state licensure examinations of at least 70 percent during
6 any ~~three~~ two year period.

7 (b) The school shall allow the teachers to have the opportunity to prepare for class, evaluate students' progress in
8 the course, counsel students individually, and participate in activities of continuing education.

9 (c) Cosmetic art schools ~~must~~ shall provide to substitutes copies of lesson plans and the performance evaluation
10 plan for the successful grading of clinical performances.

11 (d) School attendance policies shall give appropriate performances attendance credit for all hours ~~attended;~~
12 attended.

13 (e) If a graduate meets all the financial, hours, academic, and performance requirements, the school ~~must~~ shall
14 provide the student with the examination application.

15 (f) Cosmetic ~~Art art~~ schools shall maintain current bond according to G.S. 88B-17 and shall submit certification of
16 renewal or new bond prior to expiration of the bond approved by the Board.

17 ~~Each school shall submit to the Board upon renewal financial records of prepaid tuition and a letter signed by~~
18 ~~an authorized representative of the school documenting the calculations made and the method of computing the~~
19 ~~amount of the bond for the preceding year.~~ At the time of renewal, each school shall submit to the Board financial
20 records of prepaid tuition and a letter signed by an authorized representative of the school documenting the
21 calculations made and the method of computing the amount of the bond for the preceding year. Each school shall
22 maintain and submit to the Board proof of bond in an amount of ten thousand dollars (\$10,000), or equivalent to
23 prepaid tuition received during the previous year, whichever is greater.

24
25 *History Note: Authority G.S. 88B-2; 88B-4; 88B-16; 88B-17;*

26 *Eff. January 1, 2012;*

27 *Amended Eff. January 1, 2015; September 1, 2012.*

28